
SARAH E. ORYSZAK
10022 Wedge Way
Gaithersbury, MD 20886

Plaintiff,

MARK SULLIVAN, DIRECTOR
UNITED STATES SECRET SERVICE

950 H Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20023

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Defendant.

 

)
COMPLAINT

(UNDER THE APA TO SET ASIDE A FINAL AGENCY
DECISION DENYING PLAINTIFF A SECURITY CLEARANCE)

Civil No. /:0 ,1 - CV -0/N/

1.

 

This is an action under the Administrative Procedures Act

5 U.S.C., §§ 551 et. seq. t o set aside a final decision of the

United States Secret revoking Plaintiff's security clearance.

JURISDICTION

2.

 

This court had jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331

because this matter arises under the laws of the United States. It

further has jurisdiction under 5 U.S.C. § 702 because, as a result

of a final agency decision, plaintiff has suffered a legal wrong

within the meaning of a relevant statue or regulation of the United

States.

VENUE

3.

 

Venue properly lies in this court pursuant to 28 U.S.C.

§ 1391 (e) (1).

 

Defendant is an agency of the United States with its

principal headquarters in the District of Columbia.
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THE FACTS

4.

 

Plaintifff, Sarah E. Oryszak was, until June 17, 2007,

employed as a Special Agent with the United States Secret Service.

Her employment was terminated because she failed to meet the

requirements of her position due to the revocation of her Top

Secret security clearance.

5. Defendant, United States Secret Service (hereinafter

referred to as "the Secret Service" or "the Agency"), is an agency

of the United States Department of Homeland Security. Among the

duties of the Secret Service is to determine and adjudicate the

security clearances of its employees to determine whether to grant

or continue a security clearance for those employees.

6.

 

The agency carries out its duties to adjudicate security

clearances pursuant to Executive order 10865, as amended, and

Secret Service policy implementing that Executive Order. The final

decision concerning an employee's security clearance is delegated

to, and made by the Agency's Security Appeals Board.

7.

 

Plaintiff joined the Secret Service on January 15, 2002,

as part as its Uniform Division after earning her Bachelor's Degree

in Criminal Justice and a minor in Chemistry with a concentration

in Forensics.

8. Plaintiff excelled in her position with the Uniform

Division.
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9. While serving in the Uniform Division of the Secret

Service, plaintiff received numerous awards and commendations for

her service.

10.

 

While serving in the Uniform Division, Plaintiff received

a Master of Science Degree in Justice, Law, and Society from

American University, and subsequently enrolled in American

University in its Doctoral Program in Justice, Law and Society.

11. In about June 2003, plaintiff was granted a Top Secret

security clearance in connection with her duties in the Uniform

Division of the Secret Service.

12. In or about September 2004, plaintiff applied for

appointment to the position of Special Agent with the Secret

Service.

13. On June 26, 2005, plaintiff was hired as a Special Agent

for the Secret Service and assigned to the Washington Field office.

14.

 

Plaintiff was, from July to September 2005, assigned to,

and attended the Federal Law Enforcement Training Center ("FLETC")

in Glynco, Georgia.

15. Because she did not successfully complete the defensive

tactics exercise, plaintiff was required to retake the FLETC

Program.

16. While waiting to return to training at FLETC, plaintiff

was assigned to a variety of administrative tasks in the Washington

Field Office, however, plaintiff received no training and was not
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assigned as an Agent or an Investigator during that time since she

had not completed the FLETC Training Program. Plaintiff was not

permitted to sit in on squad meetings, go to any case sites, or

participate in any case work. Her duties consisted of locating case

files, moving furniture, destroying computer hard-drives before

they were salvaged, sorting evidence and putting it in numerical

order, and making copies of evidence sheets and putting them in

numerical order.

17. Among plaintiff's occasional duties were to open mail

concerning counterfeit currency, date-stamp and sort the

counterfeit currency attached to Counterfeit Note Reports, and

prepare paperwork to be sent back to banks attached with genuine

currency. Plaintiff was denied access to processing counterfeit

currency in the agency's computer system since she had not

completed her training. At no time was plaintiff given any training

in recognizing or detecting counterfeit currency.

18. After three months of performing clerical assignments in

the Washington Field office, plaintiff was reassigned to the FLETC

Program from January 10 until March 29, 2006 at Glynco, Georgia.

Plaintiff successfully completed the program, earning the highest

academic award and the Distinguished Fitness award in her class.

19.

 

Plaintiff returned to her home in Gaithersburg, Maryland

on March 30, 2006. There she cashed a check at a bank and received

a $100 bill. The following day, plaintiff drove to her family's
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residence in Buffalo, New York, to visit her mother, where she

remained for three days.

20. On April 3, 2006, plaintiff took her mother to lunch at

a restaurant and paid for lunch with her $100 bill and received

four $20 bills as change. Plaintiff did not look at, or examine the

bills before placing them directly into the bank envelope where she

had kept the $100 bill.

21.

 

Later that day, plaintiff and her sister went shopping at

a Wal-Mart. At the store, plaintiff purchased water for the trip

back to Gaithersburg, Maryland, as well as purchasing some over

the-counter pain medication and chewing gum. The bill came to

$21.97. Plaintiff paid for the purchase with one of the $20 bills
she received from the restaurant and two $1 bills. Plaintiff did

not examine the $20 bill.
22. Plaintiff and her sister then went to a Tops grocery

store across the street to purchase some fruit, Gatorade, and

vinegar. Plaintiff's sister used her Tops Bonus Card, with her name

and address on it, to pay for her purchase. Plaintiff also used her

sister's Tops Bonus Card in order to receive the sale price on the

merchandise she purchased. Plaintiff's purchase was less than $10,

so she paid in cash with another of the $20 bills she received from

the restaurant earlier that day. The following day, after

purchasing gas with the remaining two $20 bills that plaintiff had

5
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received in the restaurant, plaintiff left Buffalo, New York, and

drove back to her home in Gaithersburg, M.D.

23.

 

Plaintiff never observed, at any time, that the $20 bills

she passed were counterfeit.

24. Plaintiff would have received a monetary award from the

Agency far greater than the value of the counterfeit currency had

she turned the bills into the Agency.

25. After plaintiff and her sister left the Tops grocery

store, the $20 bill was considered to be suspect by a cashier at

the store and the police were called. The $20 bill plaintiff used

for her purchases at Wal-Mart was also identified as counterfeit

later the same day.

26. On April 7, plaintiff's sister called plaintiff by

telephone and informed her that she had been contacted a police

detective regarding the counterfeit bills. Because plaintiff had

used her sister's Tops Bonus Card to make her purchase, her sister

was identified, located, and contacted by the Hamburg, N.Y. Police

Department. Plaintiff obtained the name of the detective from her

sister and immediately called the Hamburg Police Department to

offer any information.

27.

 

As previously scheduled, plaintiff returned on April 10,

to her assigned duties at the agency's Training Center in

Washington. On April 11, 2006 she was dismissed from the Training

Center and was placed on administrative leave during the pendency

Case 1:07-cv-01141-JDB     Document 1      Filed 06/26/2007     Page 6 of 9



of the agency's investigation into the passing of the counterfeit

currency.

28. On July 19, 2006 Plaintiff voluntary submitted to an

Agency administered polygraph.

29.

 

On September 12, 2006, the Agency revoked plaintiff's Top

Secret security clearance for having "knowingly passed counterfeit

currency." Plaintiff thereafter administratively appealed the

determination to revoke her Top Secret security clearance.

30.

 

On January 7, 2007, plaintiff received a Notice of Review

from the Agency upholding the revocation of her Top Secret security

clearance.

31.

 

Plaintiff appealed that Notice of Review to the agency's

Security Appeals Board.

32. On May 3, 2007, the agency's Security Appeals Board

upheld the revocation of plaintiff's Top Secret security clearance.

33. There are no further administrative appeals available.

Plaintiff has exhausted her administrative remedies.

34. Because having a Top Secret security clearance is an

essential requirement of plaintiff's position as Special Agent, the

agency terminated her employment for failing the meet the

requirements of her position.
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VIOLATION OF THE APA

35.

 

The decision of the agency's Security Appeals Board is a

final agency decision for which there is no further administrative

appeal.

36. The Agency's decision to revoke plaintiff's Top Secret

security clearance was in violation of the Administrative

Procedures Act (The APA), 5 U.S.C. §~ 551 et. Seq., because it was

arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, unsupported by

substantial evidence, and unwanted by the facts to the extent that

facts are subject to trial de novo.

37.

 

There is no substantial evidence from which a reasonable

mind could find that plaintiff knowingly passed counterfeit

currency.

38.

 

The decision of the agency Appeals Board is final agency

action for which there is no other adequate remedy at all.

39.

 

Plaintiff will suffer irreparable harm by the revocation

of her security clearance because she is now, and will continue for

the foreseeable future, to he unable to work for any government

agency, or any private company which contracts with a government

agency, on any matters dealing with classified national security

information, or in law enforcement, or on any matters considered

unclassified but sensitive requiring an equivalent clearance.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays: (1) that the decision of the

Secret Service Appeals Board be reversed; (2) that the agency be
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ordered to reinstate plaintiff's Top Secret security clearance and

reinstate plaintiff to her position as a Special Agent; (3) that

she be awarded back pay and benefits from the time the Agency

stopped paying her; and (4) that she be awarded her attorney's fees

and costs.

orz.OS1

Sheldon I. Cohen & Assoc.

By:
Sheldon I. Cohen
D.C. Bar No. 47662
Counsel for Plaintiff
2009 N. 14th Street
Suite 708
Arlington, VA 22201

( 703) 522-1200 Phone
( 703) 522-1250 Fax
sicohenasheldoncohen.com
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